BOONE HOSPITAL CENTER

MEDICAL STAFF ORGANIZATION MANUAL



Revised June 5, 2017 at Medical Executive Committee; Approved July 24, 2017 by the Board Adopted by the Medical Staff: September 13, 2016 Approved by the Board: October 12, 2016

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PAGE

1.	GENERAL1			
	1.A.	DEFINITIONS1		
	1.B.	TIME LIMITS1		
	1.C.	DELEGATION OF FUNCTIONS1		
2.	CLIN	NICAL DEPARTMENTS		
	2.A.	DEPARTMENTS		
	2.B.	FUNCTIONS AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF DEPARTMENTS, DEPARTMENT CHIEFS, AND VICE CHIEFS		
	2.C.	CREATION AND DISSOLUTION OF CLINICAL DEPARTMENTS		
3.	MEDICAL STAFF COMMITTEES4			
	3.A.	MEDICAL STAFF COMMITTEES AND FUNCTIONS4		
	3.B.	MEETINGS, REPORTS, AND RECOMMENDATIONS4		
	3.C.	ALLIED HEALTH COMMITTEE4		
	3.D.	CANCER COMMITTEE		
	3.E.	CONTINUING EDUCATION COMMITTEE		
	3.F.	CREDENTIALS COMMITTEE		
	3.G.	INFECTION PREVENTION COMMITTEE		
	3.H.	LEADERSHIP COUNCIL		
	3.I.	MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE		
	3.J.	MEDICAL RECORD COMMITTEE		

PAGE

AME	NDMENTS AND ADOPTION	19
3.0.	PROFESSIONAL PRACTICE EVALUATION COMMITTEE	.17
3.N.	PRACTITIONER HEALTH COMMITTEE	.16
3.M.	PHYSICIAN INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY COMMITTEE	.15
3.L.	PHARMACY AND THERAPEUTICS COMMITTEE	.14
3.K.	NOMINATING COMMITTEE	.13

4.

GENERAL

1.A. DEFINITIONS

The definitions that apply to terms used in the Medical Staff documents are set forth in the Medical Staff Credentials Policy.

1.B. TIME LIMITS

Time limits referred to in this Manual are advisory only and are not mandatory, unless it is expressly stated that a particular right is waived by failing to take action within a specified period.

1.C. DELEGATION OF FUNCTIONS

- (1) When a function is to be carried out by a member of Hospital management, by a Medical Staff member, or by a Medical Staff committee, the individual, or the committee through its chairperson, may delegate performance of the function to one or more designees.
- (2) When a Medical Staff member is unavailable or unable to perform a necessary function, one or more of the Medical Staff Leaders may perform the function personally or delegate it to another appropriate individual.

CLINICAL DEPARTMENTS

2.A. DEPARTMENTS

The Medical Staff will be organized into the following clinical departments:

DEPARTMENT OF ANESTHESIOLOGY

DEPARTMENT OF EMERGENCY MEDICINE

DEPARTMENT OF MEDICINE

Division of Family Medicine

Division of Internal Medicine

Division of Neurology

DEPARTMENT OF OBSTETRICS AND GYNECOLOGY

DEPARTMENT OF ORTHOPAEDIC SURGERY

DEPARTMENT OF PATHOLOGY

DEPARTMENT OF PEDIATRICS

DEPARTMENT OF RADIOLOGY

DEPARTMENT OF SURGERY

2.B. FUNCTIONS AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF DEPARTMENTS, DEPARTMENT CHIEFS, AND VICE CHIEFS

The functions and responsibilities of departments, department chiefs, and vice chiefs are set forth in Article 4 of the Medical Staff Bylaws.

2.C. CREATION AND DISSOLUTION OF CLINICAL DEPARTMENTS

(1) Clinical departments will be created and may be consolidated or dissolved by the Medical Executive Committee upon approval by the Board as set forth below.

- (2) The following factors will be considered in determining whether a clinical department should be created:
 - (a) there exists a number of members of the Medical Staff who are available for appointment to, and are reasonably expected to actively participate in, the proposed new department (this number must be sufficiently large to enable the department to accomplish its functions as set forth in the Bylaws);
 - (b) the level of clinical activity that will be affected by the new department is substantial enough to warrant imposing the responsibility to accomplish departmental functions on a routine basis;
 - (c) a majority of the voting members of the proposed department vote in favor of the creation of a new department;
 - (d) it has been determined by the Chief Medical Officer and by the rest of the Medical Staff leadership that there is a clinical and administrative need for a new department; and
 - (e) the voting Medical Staff members of the proposed department have offered a reasonable proposal for how the new department will fulfill the designated responsibilities and functions, including, where applicable, meeting requirements.
- (3) The following factors will be considered in determining whether the dissolution of a clinical department is warranted:
 - (a) there is no longer an adequate number of members of the Medical Staff in the clinical department to enable it to accomplish the functions set forth in the Bylaws and related policies;
 - (b) there is an insubstantial number of patients or an insignificant amount of clinical activity to warrant the imposition of the designated duties on the members in the department;
 - (c) the department fails to fulfill designated responsibilities and functions, including, where applicable, its meeting requirements;
 - (d) no qualified individual is willing to serve as department chief; or
 - (e) a majority of the voting members of the department vote for its dissolution.

MEDICAL STAFF COMMITTEES

3.A. MEDICAL STAFF COMMITTEES AND FUNCTIONS

- (1) This Article outlines the Medical Staff committees that carry out ongoing and focused professional practice evaluations and other performance improvement functions that are delegated to the Medical Staff by the Board.
- (2) Procedures for the appointment of committee chairpersons and members of the committees are set forth in Article 5 of the Medical Staff Bylaws.
- (3) In addition to the stated composition of any committee, the Chief of Staff, in consultation with the Chief Medical Officer, may appoint one or more members of the Allied Health Staff to serve as a member of a given committee.
- (4) This Article details the standing members of each Medical Staff committee. In addition to the standing members, other Medical Staff members or Hospital personnel may be invited to attend a particular Medical Staff committee meeting (as guests, without vote) in order to assist such committee in its discussions and deliberations regarding the issues on its agenda. Such individuals are an integral part of the credentialing, quality assurance, and peer review process and are bound by the same confidentiality requirements as the standing members of such committees.
- (5) In accordance with Article 5 of the Medical Staff Bylaws, the Medical Executive Committee may establish additional committees or special task forces.

3.B. MEETINGS, REPORTS, AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Unless otherwise indicated, each committee described in this Manual will meet as necessary to accomplish its duties, and will maintain a permanent record of its findings, proceedings, and actions. Each committee will make a timely report after each meeting to the Medical Executive Committee and to other committees and individuals as may be indicated in this Manual.

3.C. ALLIED HEALTH COMMITTEE

3.C.1. Composition:

(a) The Chief of Staff, in consultation with the Chief Medical Officer, will appoint at least five members to serve on the Allied Health Committee, including the following:

- (1) at least one member of the Credentials Committee;
- (2) at least two other members of the Medical Staff; and
- (3) at least two members of the Allied Health Staff.
- (b) The Chief Nursing Officer and the Chief Medical Officer will serve as *ex officio* members of the Allied Health Committee. Both the Chief Nursing Officer and the Chief Medical Officer will have a vote when serving on the Allied Health Committee.
- (c) The Chief of Staff will appoint a physician and an allied health professional to serve as Co-Chairpersons of the Allied Health Committee.
- (d) Members of the committee will be appointed for an initial three-year term and will be replaced on a rotating basis to promote continuity. Members may be reappointed for subsequent terms.
- (e) The President may choose to add additional individuals, including medical affiliates or other members from the Allied Health Staff, to serve as a member(s) of the committee.

3.C.2. Duties:

The Allied Health Committee will perform the following functions:

- (a) review the credentials of all applicants seeking appointment or reappointment to the Allied Health Staff, and clinical privileges, conduct a thorough review of the applications, interview such applicants as may be necessary, and make written reports of its findings and recommendations to the Credentials Committee;
- (b) review the credentials of all applicants seeking to practice as a medical affiliate, conduct a thorough review of the applications, interview such applicants as may be necessary, and make written reports of its findings and recommendations to the Medical Executive Committee;
- (c) periodically review and address general issues regarding the Allied Health Staff and medical affiliates, proposing policy modifications where appropriate;
- (d) review, as may be requested by the Medical Executive Committee or other appropriate committee (or on its own initiative), available information regarding the current clinical competence of individuals currently practicing on the Allied Health Staff or as a medical affiliate and, as a result of such review, make a written report of its findings and recommendations;

- (e) periodically review the different categories of medical affiliates practicing at the Hospital, including the requirements for each category; and
- (f) perform any additional functions as may be requested by the Credentials Committee, Medical Executive Committee, or the Board.

3.C.3. Meetings, Reports, and Recommendations:

The Allied Health Committee will meet at least four times per year, or more often if necessary, and will maintain a permanent record of its findings, proceedings, and actions. The Allied Health Committee will report to the Credentials Committee and to the Medical Executive Committee.

3.D. CANCER COMMITTEE

3.D.1. Composition:

- (a) The Cancer Committee will consist of Medical Staff members from the diagnostic and therapeutic specialties who are involved in the care of cancer patients. There will be at least one physician from each of the following clinical specialties:
 - (1) diagnostic radiology;
 - (2) medical oncology;
 - (3) pathology;
 - (4) radiation oncology;
 - (5) surgery; and
 - (6) urology.
- (b) Allied Health Staff members who work with cancer patients may also be appointed as members of the Cancer Committee.
- (c) The Cancer Liaison Physician will also serve as a member of this committee.
- (d) The Cancer Committee will also include:
 - (1) cancer program administrator (responsible for the administrative oversight or who has budget authority for the cancer program);
 - (2) certified tumor registrar;
 - (3) oncology nurse;

- (4) palliative care team member (if these services are provided at the Hospital);
- (5) performance improvement or quality management representative;
- (6) social worker or case manager; and
- (7) at least one representative from Administration, Clinical Education, Home Care/Hospice, Pharmacy, and Rehabilitation.
- (e) The Chief of Staff will have the authority to appoint other individuals to serve on the committee and is expected to select representatives from both the community and the Hospital. The Chief of Staff will appoint any other individuals as needed to comply with the accreditation requirements of the American College of Surgeons.

3.D.2. Duties:

The Cancer Committee will perform the following duties:

- (a) develop and evaluate annual goals and objectives for clinical, educational, and programmatic activities related to cancer;
- (b) promote and coordinate a multidisciplinary approach to patient management;
- (c) support educational and consultative cancer conferences on major sites and related issues;
- (d) assist in providing an active support care system for patients, families, and staff;
- (e) monitor quality and conduct quality management studies;
- (f) promote clinical research under the auspices of the Institutional Review Board;
- (g) supervise the Cancer Registry and check for accurate and timely abstracting, staging, and follow-up reporting;
- (h) perform quality control of registry data;
- (i) encourage data usage and regular reporting;
- (j) evaluate whether the content of the annual report meets accreditation requirements;
- (k) publish the annual report by November 1 of the following year;
- (1) uphold medical ethical standards; and

(m) monitor, assess, and identify changes that are needed to maintain compliance with the eligibility criteria of the American College of Surgeons Commission on Cancer.

3.D.3. Meetings and Reports:

The Cancer Committee will meet as necessary to perform its duties. The Cancer Committee will publish an annual report to the Medical Executive Committee by November 1 of the following year, and will publish other reports on an as-needed basis.

3.E. CONTINUING EDUCATION COMMITTEE

3.E.1. Composition:

The Continuing Education Committee will consist of at least two representatives of the Medical Staff.

3.E.2. Duties:

The Continuing Education Committee will:

- (a) evaluate the effectiveness of educational programs;
- (b) evaluate and make recommendations regarding the need for professional library services;
- (c) act upon recommendations for continuing education from the Medical Executive Committee, departments, or other committees;
- (d) maintain a permanent record of education activities and submit reports to the Medical Executive Committee concerning such activities, as requested; and
- (e) organize programs for general Staff meetings and department meetings, as requested.

3.F. CREDENTIALS COMMITTEE

3.F.1. Composition:

(a) The Chief of Staff, in consultation with the Chief Medical Officer, will appoint at least five members of the Active Staff to serve on the Credentials Committee. Members will be selected based on their interest or experience in credentialing matters.

- (b) Members of the committee will be appointed for an initial three-year term and will be replaced on a rotating basis to promote continuity. Members may be reappointed for subsequent terms.
- (c) The chairperson of the committee may appoint a representative(s) from the Allied Health Staff to serve as a member(s) of the committee on an as-needed basis.

3.F.2. Duties:

The Credentials Committee will:

- (a) review the credentials of all applicants for appointment, reappointment, and clinical privileges, conduct a thorough review of the applications, interview such applicants as may be necessary, and make written reports of its findings and recommendations;
- (b) review, as may be requested by the Medical Executive Committee or other appropriate committee, available information regarding the current clinical competence of individuals currently appointed to the Medical Staff or the Allied Health Staff and, as a result of such review, make a written report of its findings and recommendations;
- (c) recommend the numbers and types of cases to be reviewed as part of the initial competency evaluation;
- (d) review and approve specialty-specific criteria for ongoing professional practice evaluation, and specialty-specific triggers that are identified by each department; and
- (e) recommend to the Medical Executive Committee appropriate threshold eligibility criteria for clinical privileges, including clinical privileges or new procedures and clinical privileges that cross specialty lines.

3.F.3. Meetings and Reports:

The Credentials Committee will meet at least ten times per year and will make regular reports to the Medical Executive Committee on the status of pending applications (including any reasons for delay in processing an application or request). Meetings of the Credentials Committee will only be open to members of the committee, the Chief of Staff, the President, and any other persons that the Chairperson of the Credentials Committee has authorized to be present.

3.G. INFECTION PREVENTION COMMITTEE

3.G.1. Composition:

- (a) The Infection Prevention Committee will consist of physician representatives from each of the following clinical areas:
 - (1) Internal Medicine;
 - (2) Obstetrics and Gynecology;
 - (3) Neonatology or Pediatrics; and
 - (4) Surgery.
- (b) There will be a representative from Patient Care and from Pathology on the Infection Prevention Committee.
- (c) The Chairperson of the Infection Prevention Committee will have the discretion to add additional individuals to the committee, including members from the Allied Health Staff, to serve as a member(s) of the committee.

3.G.2. Duties:

The Infection Prevention Committee will perform the following duties:

- (a) conduct ongoing surveillance of institution infection potentials;
- (b) identify and analyze the incidence and cause of infections;
- (c) promote preventive and corrective programs to minimize infection hazards;
- (d) review infection control practices in the Hospital as requested by the Medical Executive Committee;
- (e) make recommendations to the Hospital administration and Medical Executive Committee relating to infection control concerns raised by the Chief of Staff, the Medical Executive Committee, the departments, or other Staff and Hospital committees; and
- (f) recommend appropriate control measures or institute any reasonable study when a situation appears to present a health risk to patients or Hospital personnel.

3.G.3. Meetings and Reports:

The Infection Prevention Committee will meet quarterly and as necessary to perform its duties. The Infection Prevention Committee will maintain a permanent record of activities relating to infection prevention and will report statistics of hospital-acquired infection to the Medical Executive Committee.

3.H. LEADERSHIP COUNCIL

3.H.1. Composition:

- (a) The Leadership Council will consist of the following:
 - (1) the Chief of Staff;
 - (2) the Vice Chief of Staff;
 - (3) the Secretary-Treasurer; and
 - (4) the Chief Medical Officer.
- (b) At the discretion of the Chief of Staff and the Chief Medical Officer, the duties of the Leadership Council may be carried out by any complement of Leadership Council members, who will report back to the full Leadership Council at its next meeting.
- (c) Other Medical Staff members or Hospital personnel may be invited to attend a particular Leadership Council meeting to assist the Leadership Council in its discussions and deliberations. Any such individual will attend as a guest, without vote, but will be considered an integral part of the peer review process and will be bound by the same confidentiality requirements as the standing members of the Leadership Council.

3.H.2. Duties:

The Leadership Council may perform the following functions:

- (a) review and address issues regarding the clinical practice of members as part of the peer review process and as set forth in the PPE Policy;
- (b) serve as the primary body responsible for addressing concerns about the professional conduct of members by engaging in collegial intervention and other progressive steps as set forth in the Code of Conduct Policy;

- (c) meet, as necessary, to consider and address any situation that may require immediate action involving a member of the Medical Staff or Allied Health Staff; and
- (d) perform any additional functions as may be requested by the Medical Executive Committee and the Board.

3.H.3. Meetings, Reports, and Recommendations:

The Leadership Council will meet as often as necessary to perform its duties and will maintain a permanent record of its findings, proceedings, and actions. The Leadership Council will report to the Professional Practice Evaluation Committee and to the Medical Executive Committee.

3.I. MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The composition, duties and meeting requirements of the Medical Executive Committee are set forth in Section 5.B of the Medical Staff Bylaws.

3.J. MEDICAL RECORD COMMITTEE

3.J.1. Composition:

- (a) The Medical Record Committee will consist of at least three physician representatives from different clinical specialties, including a hospitalist.
- (b) There will be non-physician representatives from Health Information Management/Medical Records and Patient Care.
- (c) A physician will be appointed to serve as Chairperson of the Medical Record Committee.

3.J.2. Duties:

The Medical Record Committee will perform the following duties:

- (a) review medical records to evaluate whether they are accurate, adequate, clinically pertinent, and timely;
- (b) interface with the IT Committee;
- (c) evaluate medical records to assess whether they meet the standards of the Medical Staff and the Joint Commission;
- (d) serve as a liaison with the administration and with other medical records professionals; and

(e) review and approve the Hospital's Abbreviation List on an annual basis.

3.J.3. Meetings and Reports:

The Medical Record Committee will meet as necessary to accomplish its duties. It will maintain a permanent record of its activities and will submit reports to the Medical Executive Committee.

3.K. NOMINATING COMMITTEE

3.K.1. Composition:

- (a) The Nominating Committee will consist of the Chief of Staff, the Vice Chief of Staff, and the immediate past Chief of Staff.
- (b) The Chief of Staff will serve as chairperson of the Committee.
- (c) The President and Chief Medical Officer will serve as *ex officio* members of the Nominating Committee.

3.K.2. Duties:

- (a) The Nominating Committee will convene not less than 45 days prior to the annual meeting of the Medical Staff and prepare a slate of qualified nominee(s) for the office of Secretary-Treasurer. In selecting a candidate(s) for this office, the Nominating Committee will consider the qualifications for the office set forth in the Bylaws. The Nominating Committee may also consult with members of the Medical Staff and Hospital administration concerning the qualifications and acceptability of prospective nominees.
- (b) The Nominating Committee will timely submit its recommended slate so that notice of the nominees can be provided to the Medical Staff at least 30 days prior to the election.
- (c) If an additional nomination is submitted, by written petition signed by at least 10% of the voting members of the Medical Staff, the Nominating Committee will evaluate the proposed candidate to ensure that he or she meets the qualifications for the office as set forth in the Medical Staff Bylaws.
- (d) When there is a vacancy in a department chief position, or a new department is created, the Nominating Committee will also recommend the name(s) of an individual(s) eligible to serve as chief. The recommendation of the Nominating Committee will be presented to the department at least 60 days prior to the annual Medical Staff meeting. Additional nominations for department chief may be submitted, in writing, by a petition signed by at least three voting members of the

department. The petition must be presented to the Nominating Committee at least ten days prior to the annual meeting.

3.L. PHARMACY AND THERAPEUTICS COMMITTEE

3.L.1. Composition:

- (a) The Pharmacy and Therapeutics Committee will consist of at least three members of the Medical Staff. One of the physicians will serve as Chairperson of the Pharmacy and Therapeutics Committee.
- (b) The committee will also include representatives from Administration, Nursing, Patient Care, and Pharmacy.

3.L.2. Duties:

The Pharmacy and Therapeutics Committee will perform the following duties:

- (a) establish policies, procedures and responsibilities for managing, requesting and dispensing formulary and non-formulary drug products and devices at the Hospital;
- (b) strive to prevent unnecessary duplication in the stocking of drugs;
- (c) review and approve devices and technologies;
- (d) make recommendations concerning drugs to be stocked on the nursing unit floors;
- (e) make recommendations concerning appropriate antibiotic utilization policies;
- (f) define and review significant untoward drug reactions and medical events;
- (g) maintain and periodically review the Hospital formulary; and
- (h) serve as an advisor to the Medical Staff and pharmacy on drug products and devices at the Hospital.

3.L.3. Meetings and Reports:

The Pharmacy and Therapeutics Committee will maintain a permanent record of activities relating to the pharmacy and therapeutics function. As requested, it will submit reports and recommendations to the Medical Executive Committee.

3.M. PHYSICIAN INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY COMMITTEE

3.M.1. Composition:

- (a) The Physician Information Technology (IT) Committee will consist of the Chief Medical Officer and at least two other members of the Active Staff, one of whom will serve as chairperson.
- (b) The Physician IT Committee will include representatives from Administration and Nursing.
- (c) The chairperson will serve simultaneously on the Hospital's Information Management Committee.

3.M.2. Duties:

The Physician IT Committee will perform the following functions:

- (a) receive recommendations from Hospital staff that affect members of the Medical Staff and Allied Health Staff regarding the design of the Hospital information system;
- (b) help with implementation of information technology projects, including but not limited to the EMR, that affect members of the Medical Staff and Allied Health Staff;
- (c) investigate existing workflow of clinical care issues related to the Medical Staff and Allied Health Staff using clinical IT systems;
- (d) identify opportunities to improve the utilization of the Hospital's information systems through education or improvement of existing applications and technologies;
- (e) provide guidance and recommendations to maintain information systems and clinical content relevant to the Medical Staff and Allied Health Staff;
- (f) assist with accomplishing strategic and tactical goals related to information technology in support of organizational objectives;
- (g) make recommendations regarding hardware and software to be utilized by members of the Medical Staff and Allied Health Staff; and
- (h) perform such additional duties as will be delegated to it by the Medical Executive Committee.

3.M.3. Meetings, Reports, and Recommendations:

The Physician IT Committee will meet as often as necessary to accomplish its functions, but at least quarterly, and will maintain a permanent record of its findings, proceedings, and actions. The Physician IT Committee will make a timely written report after each meeting to the Medical Executive Committee.

3.N. PRACTITIONER HEALTH COMMITTEE

3.N.1. Composition:

- (a) The Practitioner Health Committee will consist of the immediate past Chief of Staff, the Chief Medical Officer (unless designated otherwise by the President), and two other members of the Medical Staff appointed for their experience in addressing health issues.
- (b) Whenever the health of a member of the Medical Staff or Allied Health Staff is under review, the chief of his or her department will also join the committee on an *ad hoc* basis. The Immediate Past Chief of Staff will serve as the Chairperson of the Practitioner Health Committee.

3.N.2. Duties:

The Practitioner Health Committee will perform the following duties:

- (a) assume responsibility for the supervision and management of practitioner health issues, as requested;
- (b) review the performance of any individual who is referred to the committee and assess whether the individual would benefit from or require treatment, rehabilitation, or other assistance;
- (c) assist in the diagnosis, treatment, and rehabilitation of practitioners who may be impaired;
- (d) develop a process for referrals to the committee (including a self-referral process);
- (e) maintain confidentiality of practitioners reviewed by the committee, unless limited by law, ethical considerations, or concerns about patient safety; and
- (f) arrange educational programs for the Medical Staff and the Allied Health Staff on practitioner health issues, including preventive measures designed to promote well-being.

3.N.3. Meetings and Reports:

The Practitioner Health Committee will meet as necessary to perform its duties. At its discretion, it may report to the Medical Executive Committee if it determines that, despite the committee's efforts, a practitioner is potentially unable to safely perform his or her privileges.

3.O. PROFESSIONAL PRACTICE EVALUATION COMMITTEE

3.O.1. Composition:

- (a) The Professional Practice Evaluation Committee will consist of the following:
 - (1) at least eight Medical Staff members who will be: (i) broadly representative of the clinical specialties on the Medical Staff; (ii) experienced or interested in credentialing, privileging, peer review, or other Medical Staff affairs; and (iii) supportive of evidence-based medicine protocols; and
 - (2) the Chief Medical Officer.
- (b) The Chief Medical Officer may appoint administrative staff as needed who will serve *ex officio*, without vote.
- (c) The Chairperson of the Professional Practice Evaluation Committee will be appointed by the Chief of Staff and must be approved by the Medical Executive Committee.
- (d) Before any Professional Practice Evaluation Committee member begins serving, the member must understand the expectations and requirements of the position and affirmatively accept them. Members will participate, as required, in periodic training on professional practice evaluation, with the nature of the training to be identified by the Leadership Council or the Professional Practice Evaluation Committee.
- (e) To the extent possible, Professional Practice Evaluation Committee members will serve staggered, three-year terms, so that the Committee includes experienced members. Appointed members may be reappointed for additional terms.
- (f) If additional expertise is required, the Professional Practice Evaluation Committee may request that a practitioner with the necessary expertise attend Professional Practice Evaluation Committee meetings while the matter is under consideration. The practitioner may assist the Professional Practice Evaluation Committee in its deliberations and the appropriate interventions. The practitioner will be present only for the relevant agenda items. Any such practitioner will attend as a guest, without vote, but will be an integral part of the professional practice evaluation

process and will be bound by the same confidentiality requirements as the standing members of the committee.

3.O.2. Duties:

The Professional Practice Evaluation Committee will perform the following duties:

- (a) oversee the implementation of the Professional Practice Evaluation Policy ("PPE Policy"), providing training and support to the various components of the process;
- (b) review and approve ongoing professional practice evaluation quality data elements that are identified by specialties;
- (c) review and approve the specialty-specific quality indicators identified by the specialties that will trigger the professional practice evaluation/peer review process;
- (d) review, approve, and assist in the development of patient care protocols and guidelines that are recommended by specialties or others;
- (e) identify those variances from rules, regulations, policies, or protocols which do not require physician review, but for which an informational letter may be sent to the practitioner involved in the case;
- (f) review cases referred to it as outlined in the PPE Policy;
- (g) develop, when appropriate, performance improvement plans for practitioners, as described in the PPE Policy;
- (h) monitor and determine that system issues that are identified as part of professional practice evaluation activities are successfully resolved;
- (i) periodically review the effectiveness of the PPE Policy and recommend revisions as may be necessary; and
- (j) perform any additional functions as may be requested by the Leadership Council, the Medical Executive Committee, or the Board.

3.O.3. Meetings and Reports:

The Professional Practice Evaluation Committee will meet at least ten times per year and will promptly report its findings to the Medical Executive Committee.

AMENDMENTS AND ADOPTION

- (a) This Manual is adopted and made effective upon approval of the Board, superseding and replacing any other Bylaws, Medical Staff Rules and Regulations, and Hospital or Medical Staff policies pertaining to the subject matter thereof.
- (b) The amendment process for this Manual is set forth in the Medical Staff Bylaws.

Adopted by the Medical Staff: September 13, 2016

Approved by the Board: October 12, 2016